
 
1 

  
 
 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Date: Tuesday, 2 September 2014 
 

Time:  6.30 pm 
 

Place:  Scrutiny Committee Room, Level 2, Town Hall Extension, Albert Square, 
Manchester M60 2LA 

 
 

Access to the Scrutiny Committee Room 
 

Public access to the committee room is over the bridge from level 2 of 
the old Town Hall building. There is no public access from within the 
Town Hall Extension. 
 

The bridge has a moderate incline so if you have limited mobility you 
may wish to call 0161 234 3241 for information on alternative access. 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR   
 
To agree a Chair of the Committee for 2014/15.  
 

 

2.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR   
 
To agree a Vice Chair of the Committee for 2014/15.  
 

 

3.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including Officers, and any apologies for absence.  
 

 

4.  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING   
 
To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record, the minutes 
of the last meeting of the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee held on 7 April 
2014.  
 
 

1 - 4 

Public Document Pack



Joint Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 2 September 2014 
   

 

 

2 

5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
To note any declarations of interest.  
 

 

6.  MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 2014/15   
 
To note the membership of the Committee.   
 

5 - 6 

7.  TERMS OF REFERENCE   
 
To note the Committees terms of reference  
 

7 - 8 

8.  UPDATE  - NEW HEALTH DEAL FOR TRAFFORD   
 
To receive an update from NHS Representatives. The latest data pack will be 
circulated and an update will be presented at the meeting.  
 

 

9.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   
 
Any other item or items (not likely to disclose "exempt information") which, by 
reason of special circumstances (to be specified), the Chairman of the 
meeting is of the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of 
urgency. 
 

 

10.  EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (REMAINING ITEMS)   
 
Motion   (Which may be amended as Members think fit): 
 
That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of the 
remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of disclosure of 
“exempt information” which falls within one or more descriptive category or 
categories of the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, as amended by 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and 
specified on the agenda item or report relating to each such item respectively. 
 

 

 
 
THERESA GRANT and SIR HOWARD BERNSTEIN 
Chief Executive               Chief Executive 
 
Peter Forrester, Democratic Services Manager   
Tel: 0161 012 1815  
Email: peter.forrester@trafford.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Joint Health Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 2 September 2014 
   

 

 

3 

Membership of the Committee 
 
Trafford Council 
Councillors Mrs. A. Bruer-Morris, J. Holden, J. Lloyd, K. Procter and Mrs. P. Young 
 
Manchester City Council 
Councillors D. Ellison, E. Newman, T. Rawlins, J.Reid and J. Wilson 
 
 
This agenda was issued on 21 August 2014 by the Legal and Democratic Services 
Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford Manchester, M32 
0TH.  



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 7 April 2014 

  

Trafford Borough Council and Manchester City Council Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee – A New Health Deal for Trafford 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 April 2014 
 
Present: 
Councillor E Newman –Chair 
Councillor Lloyd – Vice Chair 
 
Manchester City Council - Councillors M Murphy, Reid and Watson 
Trafford Borough Council – Councillors Bruer-Morris, Lamb and Procter 
 
Dr Mike Burrows, Director (North West) NHS England 
Dr Nigel Guest, Chief Clinical Officer, Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group 
Gina Lawrence, Director of Commissioning and Operations, Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
Jim O’Connell, Interim Chief Operating Officer, University Hospital South Manchester  
Dr Bob Pearson, Clinical Director, Central Manchester Foundation Trust 
 
JHSC/14/04 Attendance 
 
The Committee noted the apologies of Councillor Holden from Trafford Council and 
Councillors Ellison and Cooley from Manchester Council. 
 
JHSC/14/05 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting on 29 January 2014 as a correct record. 
 
JHSC/14/06 Declarations of Interest 
 
The following personal interests were declared: 

• Councillor Lloyd declared a personal interest as an employee of the Stroke 
Association based at Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust.  

• Councillor Bruer-Morris declared a personal interest as a practice nurse at a GP 
practice in Trafford. 

 
JHSC/14/07 Update – New Health Deal for Trafford 
 
The Committee welcomed Dr Mike Burrows, Director (North West) NHS England, Dr 
Nigel Guest, Chief Clinical Officer of Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), 
Gina Lawrence, Director of Commissioning and Operations of Trafford CCG, Jim 
O’Connell, Interim Chief Operating Officer of University Hospital South Manchester 
(UHSM) and Dr Bob Pearson, Clinical Director of Central Manchester Foundation 
Trust (CMFT) to the meeting. Dr Burrows, Mr O’Connell and Dr Pearson gave a 
presentation to the Committee which provided an update on the new health deal for 
Trafford. The key points were: 

• Combined Accident and emergency (A&E) attendances at the three 
neighbouring hospitals for Trafford residents were 6% less than expected and 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 7 April 2014 

  

admissions were 2% less than expected in the period since Trafford A&E 
department had been downgraded; 

• However, in the case of Wythenshawe Hospital there had been 215 more A&E 
admissions than expected during this period;  

• Wythenshawe Hospital A&E did not meet its 4 hour performance target in 
2013/14 (ie. 95% of patients to be seen, treated, admitted or discharged within 
4 hours of arrival); 

• In the first three months of 2014, its 4 hour performance had fallen to below 
91%; 

• On Monday, 31 March 2014 there had been 335 attendances at Wythenshawe 
Hospital’s A&E, and UHSM recognised that a daily attendance greater than 
300 was difficult to deal with; 

• In response to their failure to build resilience for A&E winter pressures, which 
were exacerbated by the downgrading of Trafford A&E to an urgent care 
centre, UHSM introduced a number of changes that had led to improvements, 
though some concerns still remained; 

• A key improvement at UHSM A&E was the introduction of a new performance 
management and monitoring system, which clarified demand and capacity; 

• At CMFT, which took over the running of Trafford Healthcare Trust in March 
2012, the rolling HSMR (hospital standardised mortality ratio) at both CMFT 
and Trafford had fallen since the acquisition, while Trafford’s rolling crude 
mortality rates for non-elective admissions had fallen by 1%.  

 
A member asked whether the lower than predicted A&E attendance and admissions 
had led to additional pressure on GPs. Ms Lawrence said there had been no 
significant increases in GP attendance, but there had been an increase of 10-15% in 
attendances at walk in centres, but they were able to accommodate this.  
 
The Committee discussed long stay patients. Ms Lawrence clarified that there were 
two trigger points at which long stay patients were monitored: when they had been 
admitted for 14 days and at 28 days. She said not all patients in hospitals for these 
lengths of time were delayed in leaving and many still needed to be in hospital. 
Currently, UHSM had two long stay patients who were waiting for social services to 
find them an appropriate place to be discharged to. UHSM currently had 126 people 
who had been admitted for 28 days or more, 38 of whom were Trafford residents.  
 
A member asked for more details on Alamac and what it was used for. Mr O’Connell 
explained it was a real time data performance dashboard, which enabled the hospital 
to manage patient flow. A meeting was held every morning to consider issues from 
the previous day and what actions were needed to address them. The Committee 
asked for details on all the additional funding and how it was spent, which included 
Alamac.  
 
The Committee discussed the data which showed that UHSM was struggling with the 
additional pressures from the downgrading of the A&E department at Trafford 
General Hospital. Members noted the changes that were being introduced to 
successfully manage the increased pressures and asked why they had not been put 
in place before Trafford was downgraded and why UHSM A&E department were not 
meeting their targets. Members also noted that they needed to understand the 
improvements in more detail. Dr Burrows said that there had been a significant 

Page 2



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 7 April 2014 

  

amount of preparatory work carried out prior to the downgrading of Trafford, and 
NHS Greater Manchester was provided with assurances by UHSM at the time. 
UHSM was given additional funding so should have been able to meet its targets. He 
said the new team was in place to address these issues. Members expressed 
frustration that prior to the implementation of the change, the Committee had 
accepted assurances from NHS Greater Manchester that UHSM would be able to 
cope with the additional pressures, only to now find that their reservations were well 
founded.  
 
The Committee discussed comments made by Dr Attila Vegh, Chief Executive of 
UHSM, at its previous meeting. He had said that admissions to UHSM had increased 
to 7-8 a day since Trafford A&E had been downgraded, and that UHSM required 22 
extra beds to meet this demand. 
 
He had also said that of the hospital’s 38 long stay patients, 37 were Trafford 
residents. The Committee noted that Dr Vegh had subsequently written to the Chair 
concerned that his reference to the 37 long stay patients from Trafford may have 
been misinterpreted. He clarified that all 37 patients from Trafford with an extended 
length of stay had still been in hospital for clinical reasons and not due to a delayed 
discharge, and that 11 of them were still receiving care at Wythenshawe Hospital. He 
had apologised for any confusion or concerns his comments may have caused, as 
UHSM was proud of its excellent relationship with Trafford Council and Trafford CCG 
and appreciative of their support in ensuring prompt discharge planning. 
 
The Committee felt that the pressures on admissions demonstrated that UHSM had 
not been able to prepare for this change adequately. Dr Burrows acknowledged the 
Committee’s concerns, but said that the old system was not financially viable and 
changes would have had to be made, so comparing current performance with 
UHSM’s performance prior to the downgrading of Trafford A&E was not a fair 
comparison. Dr Guest confirmed that admissions at UHSM A&E did briefly reach 7-8 
a day, and UHSM was given additional funding to address this. He said the system in 
place had coped, as the problem was identified and subsequently managed.  
 
A short discussion took place over whether or not it had been the right thing to do for 
UHSM to give assurances that it could cope with the additional patients arising from 
the downgrading of Trafford A&E, and why it had given those assurances. The Chair 
concluded that everyone accepted the increased pressure at UHSM was an issue. 
Members noted that, although the referral to the Secretary of State for Health had 
been unsuccessful in preventing the downgrading of Trafford A&E, the Committee 
continued to have a role monitoring the implementation of the decision. The 
Committee agreed that it wanted to see details of plans to make improvements to 
UHSM’s A&E department and indicated that it may consider further representations 
to the Secretary of State if it was unhappy with progress. 
 
Decision 
 
1. The Committee agreed to: 

• note the content of the report and presentation; 

• reiterate its concerns over the downgrading of Trafford A&E to an urgent care 
centre and its impact on UHSM’s Wythenshawe Hospital A&E department; 

Page 3



Manchester City Council Minutes 
Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 7 April 2014 

  

• note that the Committee expressed concerns about UHSM’s ability to meet the 
increased demand when downgrading Trafford A&E was first proposed. 

 
2. The Committee requested that the following be provided by the NHS for 

circulation to its members as soon as possible: 

• detail of the plans to improve the accident and emergency department at 
Wythenshawe Hospital; 

• breakdown of the additional funding streams which have been provided to 
UHSM to address the immediate issues at their A&E, and on what they have 
been spent, including on the Alamac company; 

• anonymised case studies on long stay patients; 
 
3.   The Committee asked for:  

• regular and frequent reports on the performance of UHSM’s Wythenshawe 
Hospital A&E department. 

 
4. The Committee indicated that should performance data for Wythenshawe 

Hospital A&E not demonstrate satisfactory improvement by the time of its next 
meeting, the Committee would be minded to consider making further 
representations to the Secretary of State for Health on this matter.  

 
 

Page 4



   

JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP 2014/15 
 
 

Notes on Membership:  
 
 

COMMITTEE NO. OF MEMBERS 

 
JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
10 
 

Manchester:  
5 Labour 

 
Trafford: 

3 Conservative 
2 Labour 

 

CONSERVATIVE  
GROUP  

LABOUR 
GROUP 

LIBERAL DEMOCRAT 
GROUP 

Councillors:- Councillors:- Councillors:- 
   
Patricia Young (Trafford) Eddy Newman 

(Manchester)  
 

John Holden (Trafford) Tracey Rawlins 
(Manchester) 

 

Angela Bruer - Morris 
(Trafford) 

David Ellison (Manchester) 
James Wilson 
(Manchester)  

 

 Julie Reid (Manchester) 
 

 

 Judith Lloyd (Trafford)  
 Kevin Procter (Trafford)  
   

TOTAL  3 6 0 

 
 

Substitute Members:  
 
Trafford Council have appointed Councillor Vic Ward (Conservative) and 
Joanne Harding (Labour) as substitute members.   
 
Manchester CC have not appointed substitute members  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix A 

Joint Health Scrutiny Committee for Trafford Borough Council and Manchester 

City Council 

Terms of Reference 

 
Purpose of the Committee 
 
In accordance with the letter sent to the JHOSC by the Secretary of State on 11 July 
2013, the purpose of the Committee is:-  
 
1) To assess and evaluate the progress made in relation to the implementation of the 
New Health Deal for Trafford;  
 
2) To take part in the assurance process, as stipulated by the Secretary of State." 
In exercising these functions, the JHOSC has the power to:  

1. Make comments to a relevant NHS body; 
2. Require an NHS body to provide information; 
3. Require an officer of a local NHS body to attend meetings and to answer 

questions in connection with the implementation of the proposals.    
 

Membership/Chairing 

The JHOSC will consist of ten Members. Five members will be appointed from each 
participating Local Authority and this will be decided upon at the Annual Meeting of 
each participating Local Authority.  

Individual authorities will decide whether or not to apply political proportionality to their 
own Members in accordance with their own legal requirements and constitutional 
arrangements of each authority. 

The Committee’s members will elect a Chair and Vice-Chair. 

Each member of the Committee will have one vote and the Chair will not exercise a 

casting vote.  

Quorum for meetings 

The quorum for the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will be a minimum of three 

members, with at least one member from each authority. 

Supporting the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 

The administrative support for the JHOSC will be shared between both Local 

Authorities.  

Each participating authority will appoint a link officer to provide support to the 

members of the Committee as follows: 

• liaise with the Chair and Committee Members;   

• ensure attendance of witnesses; 

• Organising and minuting meetings;  

• Produce any correspondence where appropriate. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Meetings shall be held at venues, dates and times agreed between the participating 
authorities. The host authority will bear the costs of arranging, supporting and hosting 
the meetings of the Committee.  

 
Constitutional arrangements 
 

In all matters other than those specified in this document, the standing orders and 

constitutional rules of the Members’ appointing authority will apply. 

 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	6 MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 2014/15
	7 TERMS OF REFERENCE

